
 
 

 
 

THE CITY OF KEY WEST 
3140 Flagler St, 

Key West, Florida 33040 
 

 
ADDENDUM #4 

Public Transit Facility 
Request for Proposal: 001-13 

2 November 2012 
 
 
This Addendum is issued as supplemental information to the bid package for clarification of 
certain matters of both a general and a technical nature. The referenced bid package is amended 
in accordance with the following items: 
 

 See attached Questions and Clarifications (Addendum #4) 
 See attached SWTE as-builts 

 
 
 
 
All Bidders shall acknowledge receipt and acceptance of this Addendum No 4 by acknowledging 
Addendum in their proposal or by submitting the addendum with the bid package. Bids 
submitted without acknowledgement or without this Addendum may be considered non-
responsive 
 
 
_________________________    _____________________ 
Signature       Name Of Business 
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CITY OF KEY WEST 
Public Transportation Facility Project 
Addendum No. 4 
November 2, 2012 
 
 
CLARIFICATIONS 
 

 Air compressor shall be screw-type compressor. Size shall be 60 CFM @ 150 psi. 
 

 
QUESTIONS 
 

Q1. Incinerator stack and other drawings - CH2MHill Drawing D-02 Legend Note 6 for 
incinerator stack refers to drawing SC4.  Notes in lower left hand section of D-02 (note 4 
and 5) refer to drawings CE 1-3, SC and S drawings.  None of these were issued with the 
RFP documents.  Please provide. 

A. All as-built drawings are included in Addendum No. 4. 

Q2. Server/Telephone room cooling requirements - the electronic equipment to be housed in 
the Server/Telephone room is not described in detail.  Typically, cooling for this type of 
equipment can be critical to maintaining function.  Please provide a list of the equipment 
located in the Server/Telephone room and the BTU load for each item. 

A. The City has a VOIP telephone system that is housed at a different facility. One server 
and one switch will be located in the server/telephone room. 
 

Q3. Section 6.3.3.10 provides a specification as to the quality and type of casework 
(millwork) to be installed on the project; however, no reference in the bid package is 
made as to the extent of millwork to be installed.  Can a millwork schedule or description 
of desired millwork furnishings be provided so that pricing may be incorporated into our 
proposal? 

 
A. Description is provided in aforementioned section; conceptual minimum extent is as 

follows:  
1. Break Rooms upper and base cabinets as shown in plan,  
2. Fare Box Cannister Room base cabinets as shown in plan,  
3. Parts Room full height cabinets as shown in plan,  
4. Mech Rec/Manuals/Comp Station work  surface counter along south and west 

walls with minimum 3 double-door base cabinets dispersed along length with 
intermittent knee space,  

5. Dispatcher work surface counter along east and approximately two-thirds of 
south wall with minimum 3 double-door base cabinets dispersed along length 



Addendum 4 Page 2 of 2 

with intermittent knee space,  
6. Ops Report Room work surface counter along west and south walls and along 

approximately two-thirds of east and north walls with minimum 4 base cabinets 
dispersed throughout with intermittent knee space.     

 
Q4. According to Addendum 2, the vehicle lifts are being provided by the city. Can you 

provide the number of units, manufacturer and model number(s) for the existing lifts? 
 

A. Number of units was provided in Addendum No. 3.  Manufacturer should be Rotary Lift 
or approved equal. Minimum bay floor thickness shall be 6.0 inches (surface mount 
model). 
 

Q5.  Is there a small/local business participation requirement for this project? 
 

A. There is no small/local business participation requirement, but per FTA Form 28 located 
in Appendix H, there is a national goal for participation of Disadvantaged Business 
Enterprises (DBE) of 10%.  
 

Q6. Please clarify whether the whole site will require 2 feet of clean fill as stated in section 
6.2.2 of the Design Criteria or whether only the building foot prints will require the 2 feet 
of fill while the parking lot areas require 1 foot of fill as stated in the Geotechnical 
Report. 
 

A. The whole site requires 2 feet of clean fill as stated in section 6.2.2 of the Design 
Criteria. 
 

Q7. Section 6.2.2 of the Design Criteria states that “Existing fire pump should be evaluated 
for reuse, but the Design-Builder is ultimately responsible for meeting fire flow 
requirements” – is this fire pump currently functioning, and if so, what is the flow 
capacity? 
 

A. It is functional.  We provided the pump information in Addendum No. 3. 
 

Q8. Proposed utility plan number C-03 has a note stating “Connect to existing sanitary sewer 
force main +/- 600 LF”. Please clarify the extent of this work either by drawings or other 
means to depict any obstructions or site conditions that should be taken into account that 
may affect the work. 
 

A. The current facility utilizes a septic system for sanitary sewer disposal which will be 
disconnected and demolished.  Key West Resort Utilities (KWRU) currently provides 
wastewater collection and treatment services within the area of the proposed 
development and has been contacted regarding the intent to connect to their wastewater 
collection system to service the proposed Public Transportation Facility development.  
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The work will be primarily along College Road. There is an impact fee that the 
Design/Builder will be responsible to pay. Please contact KWRU for impact fees. 
 

Q9. The RFP specified that the design-builder is to provide security, cctv and card access 
systems.  Will these systems function on a stand-alone basis, or will they be tied-in to an 
existing City system? 

 
A. It should be a stand-alone system. 

 
Q10. No windows are shown in the first or second floor plans, but the elevations show what 

appear to be numerous windows.  Please confirm that it is the City’s intent is to have 
windows at the corresponding spaces, as shown in the building elevations. 
 

A. Windows are required at the corresponding spaces as shown in elevation.  
 

Q11. The floor plan for the second floor shows a Logia with a cross-hatch pattern.  Is this 
space intended to be an outdoor covered area, or as shown in the South Elevation, and 
enclosed, conditioned space with windows? 
 

A. The Loggia is an outdoor covered area (windows shown in the South Elevation are half-
toned, indicating they and French doors to the Loggia are seen beyond.) 
 

Q12. No fenestrations are shown in plan or elevation at the Break Room, Common Work 
Room, Server Rm or Training Rooms.  Please confirm that these spaces are not to have 
windows/openings. 
 

A. Windows are required at the corresponding spaces as shown in elevation and in each 
Break Room (1st & 2nd Floor.) (The Fare Box Room also requires a Transaction 
window, as shown in plan.)  
 

Q13. Demolition plans call out for the relocation of existing trees.  Landscape plans do not 
show location of relocated trees.  Please indicate location of existing trees to remain. 
 

A. Trees to be relocated within the project site. Refer to Sheet LD-100 for locations. 
 

Q14. Plans and RFP do not indicate if irrigation system is to be connected to an irrigation well, 
or City water.  Please indicate source and location of irrigation water. 
 

A. Irrigation system is not required. Please refer to Section 6.2.9.  
 

Q15. Sheet LD-101 indicates a “Typical Roadway Buffer” with planting specification.  This 
does not appear to match the planting shown on Sheet LD-100.  Please indicate if we are 
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to follow the planting shown in plan, or if we are expected to provide the planting 
indicated in the detail. 

 
A. Design/Builder to follow the planting shown on plan. 
 

Q16. Is a survey of the site available?  If not, will one be provided? 
 

A. Design/Builder will be responsible for site survey.   
 

Q17. The heights indicated on the elevation drawings do not match the written information of 
section 6 of the RFP.  Please indicate which design heights we are to follow. 
 

A. Use design heights indicated on conceptual drawings. 
 

Q18. Are building sections available? 
 

A. Building sections are not available. 
 

Q19. Are conceptual mechanical, electrical, plumbing and fire protection drawings available? 
 

A. No. These drawings are not available. 
 

Q20. Does the City have requirements for finish hardware and master keying? 
 

A. Information will be provided on a future date. 
 

Q21. Please provide additional information for the Bus Wash for design and pricing purposes.  
We are in need of the following: 

a. How many busses will be washed per day? 
Four (4) buses per day. 
 

b. How many busses does the City own? 
The facility will hold (20) buses.  Currently, Transit fleet consist of  (14) 30' buses 
(Seven - 2001 Gillig Models & Seven - 2003 Gillig Models) and two (2) 35' buses (2008 
Gillig buses) . 
 

c. What is the length of the typical bus to be washed? 
See information in Part b. 

 
Q22. Shall the bus wash contain an incorporated water reclamation system? 

 
A. Yes, the bus wash system shall have a Reclaim Water System. 
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Q23. Bus Wash, Fuel Storage & General Site Sustainability Goals  -RFP 1.1.8 page 103 

indicates "the facility will be designed and constructed to qualify for Certification under 
LEED 2009".  On sites with multiple buildings, it is possible to exclude some from 
LEED consideration if planning is done accordingly.  Please advise if the term "facility" 
is intended to refer to the Administration/Maintenance building only, or if the Bus Wash, 
Fuel Storage, and general site are intended to comply with LEED 2009. 

 
A. “Facility” is inclusive of all the buildings on the site (e.g. Administration/Maintenance 

building, bus wash, etc.) 
 
Q24. Vehicle lift pits - Addendum 2, Q17 response indicates that vehicle lifts are not the 

responsibility of the D/B.  Chen Moore floor plan for First Level shows two rectangles - 
one at a Repair Bay and one at a Tire Bay. There is a concern that sunken pits may be 
required at these locations for vehicle lifts, or that the rectangles are significant in some 
way.  Please advise 

 
A. Please see answer to Question No. 4. The rectangles in the conceptual plan represent  

bus dimensions. Sunken pits are not required. 
 
 

Q25. Location of existing sewer facilities that the project will connect to 
 

A. Please refer to Sheet C-03.  It is located 600’ along College Road. 
 

Q26. Is there a route survey for the sewer force main from the site to the point of connection. If 
not do we provide a budget number for the survey 

 
A. There is no survey. Design/Builder will be responsible for it. 

 
Q27. Do we provide a budget number for the permit and processing fees 
 

A. Design/Builder will be responsible for permit and processing fees. Please refer to Section 
3.2. 

 
Q28. Which grading and drainage plan do we go by (there are three versions attached to the 

RFQ) 
 

A. For grading, please refer to Addendum No. 3, Question No. 40. For drainage, Sheet C-02 
in Appendix A dated October 2011. Design/Builder should coordinate any warranted 
modifications to the SFWMD Permit. 

 
Q29. Do we provide fencing around the retention areas as the grading plan reflects a three foot 

drop from proposed grade to the bottom of the retention area 
 

A. Design/Builder will be responsible to finalize construction documents to meet code 
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requirements. The City would rather not have a fence around the retention areas. 
 
Q30. Do we provide a support (i.e. 1’ to 2’ layer of limerock) as a support for the utilities 

(water, sewer, drainage) that will installed under the 2’ cap that will be placed over the 
existing landfill. 

 
A. Please refer to Design Criteria Section 5.2.5.9, and 5.4.13.2. 

 
 
Q31. What will the sewer flow generated by the site be based on so the pump station can be 

sized 
 

B. Design/Builder is ultimately responsible for calculating sewer flow and sizing lift station 
pumps.  

 
Q32. Does the water main need to be looped thru the site and does each bldg. require a 

sprinkler system for fire protection  
 

A. Water main needs to be looped as shown on the plans. Design/Builder is responsible to 
determine sprinkler system requirements. 

 
 

THIS IS A FORMAL ADDENDUM THAT HAS TO BE ACKNOWLEDGED IN THE 
BID ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM.  IF A BIDDER FAILS TO 
ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT OF THIS ADDENDUM AS PART OF ITS BID 
SUBMISSION, THE CITY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REQUEST, AND THE 
BIDDER MUST COMPLY WITHIN TWO (2) BUSINESS DAYS AFTER RECEIPT OF 
WRITTEN REQUEST FROM THE CITY. 
 




















































































































